
AGENDA 
CITY OF SALEM 

SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
September 14, 2017 

6:00 pm 
  

I. Call to Order 
II. City Council Action 

a)  Approval of Plan to Close Out Revolving Loan Fund 
 

III. Adjournment 
 
Bill Gruen 
City Manager 
 

 
 

MINUTES 
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2017 
6:00 PM 

 
I. Call to Order 

A Special Meeting of the Salem City Council was held in the Council Chambers of Salem City Hall on 
Thursday, September 14, 2017.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Barbee at 6:00 pm. 
 
Council members present: 
Councilman Tim Hudspeth 
Councilman Nic Farley 
Councilman Craig Morton 
Councilwoman Sue Morgan 
Mayor Barbee 
 
Council members absent:  None. 
 
Others present: 
City Manager Bill Gruen 
City Clerk Bev Quinn 
Economic Development Director Jeanne Gustafson 
Finance Director Keli Barrow 
Planning Commission Chairman Rick McCullum 
Members of the Media 
 

II. City Council Action  
 a) Approval of Plan to Close Out Revolving Loan Fund 

 City Manager Gruen indicated Economic Development Director Jeanne Gustafson attended a 
mandatory meeting  of all revolving loan administrators in Springfield on September 7th.  Effective 
immediately, there can be no more RLF loans made.  For now, communities will continue to 
collect payments.  In January, the RLF balances must be returned to the State of Illinois, after 
which time the City will have the opportunity to apply for the funds as non-competitive grants. 

 
 Mr. Gruen indicated Council has approved the use of RLF funds to assist WKS/Denny’s Restaurant 

with street construction.  Mr. Gruen indicated he has spoken with Brent Taylor of Rhutasel and 
Associates, and Mr. Taylor does not feel it likely that the road can be completed before the funds 
must be returned to the State.  Mr. Gruen added that if we let this project lapse, it is possible it 
could still be done, but the City would need to find a way to finance these projects. 

 
 City Manager Gruen suggested making a grant of $140,000 to WKS towards the purchase of the 

land, in lieu of spending $140,000 for the construction of the roadway, and an additional $30,000 
towards construction of the fence. 

 
 The second project Mr. Gruen wanted to talk about was the housing rehab grant that Council 

previously approved applying for, with assistance from SCIRPDC.  Mr. Gruen indicated that the 
State will not look favorably on a grant application for housing rehab when they believe we have 
the RLF funds available. 

 
 Once the RLF fund balance is returned to the State of Illinois, the City will have the opportunity to 

apply for the funds to be used on two projects between now and 2020.  Mr. Gruen added that the 



City will have greater flexibility with spending using the State funds than it will have using Fund 
18. 

 
 Discussion ensued regarding whether or not the City will actually receive these funds back, once 

they are returned to the State.  Economic Development Director Gustafson indicated that Wendy 
Bell did most of the presentation, and she assured those present that they will receive the funds 
back. 

 
 Councilwoman Morgan commented that she does not want to wait on using these funds for 

projects, and the longer the City puts it off, the less likely it is that we will receive the money back.  
Dir. Gustafson indicated she feels the City can have the WKS project spent down prior to returning 
the funds.  Councilman Farley indicated he has very little faith in the State returning the money, 
and he would also like to see the RLF funds used for a possible project at the former Selmaville 
North school building.  Councilman Hudspeth asked if Wendy stood in front of a packed room, 
and assured those present that they would get their funds back.  Dir. Gustafson responded that 
she did, and she believes her. 

 
 Discussion ensured regarding the sanitary sewer replacement project approved earlier this year, 

the street overlay project approved and the Salem Theatre building.    
 
 Councilman Farley indicated the Salem Theatre project would be $35,000 plus $35,000, and asked 

about the employment requirements.  Dir. Gustafson indicated although there may not be many 
immediate hires, the theatre will have two years to have the hires in place.  Additionally, we may 
be able to claim retention for some of the neighboring businesses, such as M & M Courtyard Café 
and Coffee House and the ABC.  Gustafson added that we will be required to do surveys showing 
the full-time positions meet the low-to-moderate income requirements.  Councilman Hudspeth 
asked if the City will have to go through the same hoops after the money is returned to the State 
that is has to go through currently.  Dir. Gustafson replied, “yes”. 

 
 Mayor Barbee asked how many small projects the City could get in before the end of the year, 

and then apply for the two larger projects after the beginning of next year and before 2020.  City 
Manager Gruen responded that there will be more ways that the money can be spent if we wait.  
Councilman Farley indicated the Theatre Board estimates that the expansion will cost 
approximately $55,000, however, they are having problems with their architect.  If they could get 
a new architect on board, they could break ground in October.  There was discussion about using 
Round Table Design, or simply hiring a contractor and getting the work done. 

 
 Planning Commission Chairman Rick McCullum indicated he has held many positions in local 

government and economic development, and he put together the RLF program for the City of 
Olney.  McCullum indicated that he started in Olney 35 years ago and left 26 years ago.  The RLF 
program was monitored by DCCA and HUD, and his program received 17 accommodations.  Now 
the State is trying to say it was done all wrong.  Mr. McCullum indicated he was trained by Roger 
Kinney, and nothing that is being presented as having been done incorrectly in the past was done 
incorrectly.    Mayor Barbee added that Council does not feel the fund was mishandled by the past 
administration.  Mr. McCullum added that once the money was used two or three times, it was 
considered “washed”, and could be used for other projects.  Mayor Barbee reiterated that no one 
on Council thinks the money was mishandled.  Councilwoman Morgan added that the State just 
wants the money.  Mr. McCullum indicated this is happening statewide.  Economic Development 
Director Gustafson stated that she has known David Wortman, who is handling the RLF recapture, 
for years, and she trusts him and that she feels confident the City will be able to use the money 
after it is returned to the State.   

 
 Councilwoman Morgan indicated she would like to see the Theatre completed now, rather than 

as one of the City’s two projects after January.  Mr. Gruen responded that the faster we try to 
push projects through, the more likely we are to make mistakes.  Councilwoman Morgan added 
that the theatre is vital – it brings in people who eat, stay and enjoy our community, then they 
come back again.  Councilwoman Morgan added that the Theatre is a great project to spend 
money on and she would like to see it done before the end of the year. 

 
 Mayor Barbee asked if helping the Theatre Board (Cultural Center) will hurt our chances in getting 

a movie theatre.  Dir. Gustafson responded that it will not. 
 
 Mayor Barbee suggested spending $300,000 on the WKS project, Theatre building and SCAC 

project, then returning $700,000 to the State.  Councilman Farley suggested doing the WKS 
project for the sale of property and the Theatre project.  Director Gustafson indicated Cory Jobe 
loves the Theatre, and he can provide some powerful support. Mayor Barbee added that he feels 



there are a number of projects that could be done fairly quickly, and he feels like it may be “use it 
or lose it”.  Mr. Gruen responded that he is not worried about losing the money.  Mayor Barbee 
added that since the City will be limited to two projects after January, he would like to do a few 
projects before January, then the City will still have the ability to do two projects after January. 

   
  City Manager Gruen summarized what Council has indicated they would like to see done as: 
 

1)  Grant WKS $140,000 for the purchase of land, in place of building the road estimated to cost 
$140,000; and 

 
2) Work on the Theatre project before the end of the year or work on the Selmaville North 

prospect. 
 
City Manager Gruen added that he does not want to “purchase” the four existing loans the City 
has.  Gruen wants to send them all back to the State, although purchasing the loans might have 
insured that the City received more money back from the State.  The four active loans are:  “The 
Cottages”, “Hair Business”,  “Reaching for the Stars” and “The American Legion”. 

 
II. Adjournment 

Motion was made by Councilwoman Farley and seconded by Councilman Hudspeth to adjourn the 
meeting at 6:j48 pm. 
 
 
Bev Quinn, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Minutes Approved:   
 
(Attachment:  Handout provided by Economic Development Director Jeanne Gustafson) 

   

 



 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 


